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MEMORANDUM 

TO:        Bob Klein, Chair, and Members of the  
  Alcoholic Beverage Control Board  

 

DATE:  June 12, 2018 

FROM: Erika McConnell, Director 
 

RE:  4597 Boon Dox Bar  

 
Requested 
Action: 

License renewal 

  
Statutory 
Authority: 

AS 04.06.090(b):  “The board shall review all applications for licenses made under   
this title and may order the director to issue, renew, revoke, transfer, or suspend 
licenses and permits authorized under this title.” 
 
AS 04.11.330(a)(3):  “(a) An application requesting renewal of a license shall be 
denied if…(3) the applicant has not operated the licensed premises for at least 30 
eight-hour days during each of the two preceding calendar years, unless the board 
determines that the licensed premises are under construction or cannot be operated 
through no fault of the applicant;” 
 
3 AAC 304.170(j):  “If a license is exercised only to satisfy the minimum operating 
requirement under AS 04.11.330(a)(3) or 3 AAC 304.107(c)(1), a licensee has the 
burden of proof to show that the licensed premises was operated in a similar fashion 
to other licensed premises of the same type and shall, at a minimum, 
(1) provide signage, of sufficient size and visibility to show that the premises is open 
for business, stating business name and hours of operations; 
(2) offer for sale at the licensed premises, as appropriate to the type of license, a 
variety of malt beverages, wines, and distilled spirits; 
(3) visibly display the alcoholic beverages stock in a licensed package store premises; 
(4) provide seating in beverage dispensary licensed premises for at least one-half of 
the maximum number allowed by the occupancy permit; 
(5) comply with all state or municipal health, fire, and zoning laws or ordinances 
required for the operation of business; 
(6) maintain a record of all purchases of alcoholic beverages for resale on the 
licensed premises; and 
(7) record sales with a cash register that retains a record of transactions.” 

  
Staff Rec.: Deny the renewal with 30 day abeyance for licensee to submit application for waiver 

of operations for 2017 
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Background:  In the renewal application for this license, the licensee indicated that the package 
store license was only operated to meet the minimum requirements in 2017. Investigation by AMCO 
Enforcement shows that the licensee was not able to provide the required proof of operating for a 
minimum of 8 hours per day for 30 days that year. In addition, as noted in Investigator 
Stonecipher’s memo, the licensee admitted to closing early when business was slow. 
 
A final 2018/2019 was issued to the licensee in error. 
 
 
Attachment: Memo from Investigator Stonecipher regarding minimum operations 

AB-30 for 2017 
Renewal application 
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MEMORANDUM 

          TO:  Sarah Oates,  Program Coordinator DATE: Sunday, June 03, 2018 

          FROM: Investigator Amanda Stonecipher 

 

RE: Boon Dox Bar Beverage Dispensary #3925 & 
Boon Dox Bar Package Store #4597         

 

On February 2, 2018, I was tasked with determining if Boon Dox Bar Beverage 
Dispensary #3925 and Boon Dox Bar Package Store #4597 had met Minimum Operating 
Requirements during the 2017 licensing period.  The licenses were issued January 4, 
2017 after I completed an initial inspection of both licensed premises.  

The licensee, Mr. Michael Stormont, did not initially provide all requested documents 
on the AB-30 Proof of Minimum Operating Checklist for both licenses as requested.  He 
initialed he was providing all documents listed on both establishments AB-30 forms.  
Documents missing included photos of signage displayed at the establishment during 
all hours of operation, of sufficient size and visibility to show the premises was open for 
business, and stating the business name and hours of operation.  Mr. Stormont did 
provide photos of the signage on the building, however, the hours of operation were 
missing.  Mr. Stormont stated he was going to return to the bar and put a sign up with 
the hours.  He provided a photo of the hours after they were posted as requested.  Mr. 
Stormont did not provide a full list of alcoholic beverages that were offered for sale at 
the licensed premises during all hours of operation as requested on the AB-30.  Lastly, 
Mr. Stormont did not provide cash register/point of sale system receipts showing all 
alcoholic beverage transactions on the premises of the establishments as indicated on 
the AB-30 form. 

After speaking with Mr. Stormont, he agreed to provide the cash register receipts.  
What was provided appeared to be incomplete.  Mr. Stormont stated his bar manager 
requested a new register be purchased midway through the operating time period 
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because the old cash register was not sufficient.  Mr. Stormont attempted to retrieve the 
receipts off both the point of sale systems but was unsuccessful.  He was able to contact 
Northern Business Systems to gain assistance.  The representative was able to provide 
records from both points of sale systems used during 2017.  The information provided 
by the representative indicated the establishments were only open between September 
22, 2017 and October 21, 2017; a total of 30 days exactly.  Only 12 of the 30 days 
appeared to be full 8 hour days of operations.  Many of the 8 hour days were only 
determined to be 8 hour operational days due to “No Sales” being indicated on the cash 
register reports/receipts.  It is unclear if the bar and package stores were actually open 
for business to the public at the time of the “No Sale”; or if the bar manager and/or Mr. 
Stormont was just opening the cash register for other reasons. 

Mr. Stormont admitted the bar manager did not keep records of his hours worked, nor 
were there any time cards to provide.  Mr. Stormont also admitted the bar would shut 
down early if it was a slow business day. 

After reviewing AS 04.11.330(a)(3) and 3 AAC 304.170(j)(1)&(7), the Boon Dox Bar and 
Package Store did not comply with #1 and #7 of the minimum operating requirements 
as well as AS 04.11.330(a)(3).  Regarding #1, the hours of operation were not initially 
posted for the public to see until after the investigation began.  Regarding #7, the cash 
register receipts do not depict the actual hours the bar and package stores were open for 
the sales of alcohol.   

In looking at the totality of the documents submitted compared to what is required, it 
does not appear the licensee met the burden as required in 3AAC304.170(j) on both 
licenses issued to the licensee.  

 




















